
1 
 

APPROVED MINUTES 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

CITY OF WYOMING, MINNESOTA 
JULY 23, 2019 

7:00PM 
CALL TO ORDER: 
Planning Commission Chairman Lobermeier called the Regular Meeting of the Wyoming Planning 
Commission for July 23, 2019 to order at 7:00 PM 
 
CALL OF ROLL: 
On a Call of the Roll the following members of the Wyoming Planning Commission were present:  
Mark Lobermeier, Bryan Murdock, Katie West and Judy Coughlin  
 
ABSENT: Joel Ericson 
 
Also Present: Fred Weck Zoning Administrator and Mayor Lisa Iverson 
 
DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM: 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
OPEN FORUM: NONE 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 
1. Consider approving the minutes of the “Regular Meeting” of the Wyoming, Minnesota 

Planning Commission for June 25, 2019 
 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER COUGHLIN, SECONDED BY 
COMMISSIONER WEST, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE “REGULAR MEETING” 
OF THE WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION FOR JUNE 25, 2019 AS 
SUBMITTED. 
 
Voting Aye: Murdock, West, Coughlin, and Lobermeier 
Voting Nay: None  
Abstain:  None 
Absent:   Ericson 

 
SCHEDULED PUBLIC HEARINGS: NONE 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
2. Final Plat   D-19-003 “Cherry Hill”, Ken Tolzmann 

24738 Hamlet Avenue 
      Property ID Number 21.10659.00 

 
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that the full list of recommended conditions for approval had 
been distributed and were slightly different than what was included in the packet.   
 
Chair Lobermeier asked if there had been any changes since the Commission had seen this at 
the Preliminary Plat approval. 
 
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that there had been no changes from the most recent submittal.   
 
Commissioner Murdock asked why the plans were changed to be only a two lot plan. 



2 
 

 
Mr. Tolzmann stated that the change down to two lots was because of the soil conditions on the 
property.   
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that it appears as though this is pretty straight forward and noted that 
with the current proposal of only two lots, there are no wetland impacts.   
 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER WEST, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER 
MURDOCK, TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE FINAL PLAT FOR D-19-003 
“CHERRY HILL”, KEN TOLZMANN, 24738 HAMLET AVENUE, PROPERTY ID NUMBER 
21.10659.00 SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS:   
1. The City Engineers approval of the street, utility, grading and drainage plans.  
2. That after the City Engineer has approved the construction plans and 

specifications; new construction plans that reflect the approved revisions are 
submitted to the City (three full size and two reduced sets). 

3. Compliance with the Staff Review Letter dated March 7, 2019 
4. That all required local, state and/or federal permitting must be obtained and proof 

of such permits submitted prior to the pre-construction conference with staff. 
5. If By-laws, Property Owner's Association Articles of Incorporation, and/or 

Protective Covenants are to be established for the lots, said instruments must 
first be approved by the City Attorney. 

6. A Development Agreement, the terms and provisions of which must be approved 
by the City Attorney, between the property owner the developer and the city, must 
be executed prior to construction beginning on the improvements in the 
development. 

7. A surety in the form of a cash deposit or letter of credit guaranteeing to complete 
the work in substantial compliance with the approved street, utility, grading, and 
drainage plans.  The surety must remain in place until the site work is complete 
and approved by the city. The City Engineer must approve the surety amount and 
the City Attorney must approve the terms if a letter of credit is used. 

8. The property is encumbered by a mortgage running in favor of The County Bank, 
dated August 22, 1997 and recorded August 25, 1997 as Document No. 298837.  
The mortgage lender will be required to provide consent to the plat to be signed 
by the mortgage lender, or a release of the mortgage. 

9. The property is encumbered by a mortgage running in favor of WMC Mortgage 
Corp., dated February 18, 1998 and recorded February 26, 1998 as Document No. 
305137.  The mortgage lender will be required to provide consent to the plat to be 
signed by the mortgage lender, or a release of the mortgage. 

   
Voting Aye: Murdock, West, Coughlin, and Lobermeier 
Voting Nay: None  
Abstain:  None 
Absent:   Ericson 

 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
3. Comprehensive Plan Update, Public Engagement Strategy Development 
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that in addition to discussing the public engagement strategy, 
Commissioner Murdock had also put together a proposed Table of Contents for the 
Comprehensive Plan for the Commission to discuss.    
 
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that it will cost about $1,000 to mail the survey.   



3 
 

 
Chair Lobermeier noted that he had neglected to send over comments to City Administrator 
Linwood after the last meeting regarding the survey.  He suggested that the Commission discuss 
some of the information and get the feedback to him that way.  He stated that some of the “tense” 
statements do not match and need to be cleaned up because they make statements in the same 
paragraph referring to both future and past tense. 
 
Commissioner Coughlin asked if this information was for the public or more for City use. 
 
Mayor Iverson stated that it is mostly for City use and not necessarily for the public because it is 
still in draft form.   
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that if this is just for Planning Commission use, she thinks that the 
group understands its intent and what it says, but if it is something that the public will be seeing, 
she thinks there are things that will need to be clarified.   
 
Mayor Iverson stated that she believes this will become part of the Comprehensive Plan as part 
of the community engagement process. 
 
Commissioner Coughlin pointed out some additional instances where it refers to both past and 
future tense.  She stated that under bullet point 4, she would like to see additional forms of 
notification be included, such as press releases or flyers posted at local establishments.   
 
Mayor Iverson noted that the information will be sent out to approximately 3,100 homes and 
businesses.   
 
Commissioner Murdock asked if what would be sent out was the survey or the announcement 
about the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that it would essentially be both an announcement and the 
survey.   
 
Commissioner Coughlin asked if there would also be the option for people to complete an on-line 
survey rather than the mailed survey. 
 
Mayor Iverson stated that there will be an option for people to complete the survey on-line. 
 
Chair Lobermeier asked if there can be a different header that grabs attention and doesn’t simply 
say “Comprehensive Plan”.  He suggested something like “Imagining our Future” or “Guiding the 
Future of Wyoming”.   
 
Commissioner West agreed that the current version sounds very boring and thinks something 
more along the lines of “The City Needs Your Help” would grab attention and make someone with 
young kids at home want to take some time to read it and give feedback.   
 
Mayor Iverson confirmed that the Commission wants more call to action words in this section.   
 
Chair Lobermeier suggested that there be some type of headline and a very short introduction 
paragraph before the survey.   
 
Commissioner Murdock suggested that this document be sent to the Commissioners via e-mail 
in a Word document so all of these changes can be made more easily.  He stated that there are 
also some issues within the text that have resulted from cutting and pasting, such as font size that 
should also be addressed.   
 



4 
 

Mayor Iverson suggested that it may be a good idea to have a graphic printer create the document 
so it looks more professional because it is all about the branding. 
 
Commissioner Coughlin asked if this document can be posted as a flyer or a handout without the 
survey so people know that it is coming. 
 
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he may have misspoken about the mailing being both the 
announcement and the survey because he sees at the bottom it directs people to go on-line to 
take the survey. 
 
Mayor Iverson stated that she spoke with City Administrator Linwood earlier today and they 
decided that they did also want the survey to go out in the mail because there are a lot of seniors 
that don’t do on-line things.  She stated that there will also be announcements about the survey 
that happen at events such as Stagecoach Days.  She reiterated that her understanding is that 
both the announcement and the survey will be mailed out, but people will have the option of 
completing the survey on-line if they choose to.  She reiterated that she thinks this should 
definitely go to a graphic printer in order for it to look professional.   
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that there needs to be some sort of indication that there will be a 
public hearing before the Comprehensive Plan will be adopted.  She gave a few more examples 
of where she feels the verbiage is unclear.   
 
Commissioner Murdock stated that this has some good background and “why we plan” type of 
comments.  He stated that he plans to give City Administrator Linwood some comments about 
ways this document and information can be made more inviting. 
 
Chair Lobermeier asked if the participant responses would go out to the public. 
 
Mayor Iverson explained that her understanding is that as responses some in, the Council, 
Planning Commission and staff would be able to see a tally of the responses.   
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that he thinks it may be a good idea to share this with the public also and 
simply state, here is what the City asked and here is what was heard back from residents.   
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that she agreed the information should be shared with the public 
and asked what will actually be getting mailed to the public. 
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that it would be the survey questions.  He stated that in looking at the 
draft survey questions, there were about 5 questions that dealt with parks and he asked whether 
that was too many questions for that topic.  He stated that he thinks it may be okay to ask a few 
less questions on that topic.  
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that she agreed and thinks there needs to be more questions that 
relate to land use.   
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that he also does not see the point in asking people about their feelings 
about the current Comprehensive Plan because most people won’t know what it is and suggested 
changing the wording to be something like, “How do you feel about the way Wyoming has been 
growing?”. 
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that she would like to see something that states what the current 
land use objectives are and then ask people if they agree or disagree with it and ask what they 
would change.  She stated that she would also like to see more questions asking if people would 
like to see more commercial, more housing, or more industrial development.  She also suggested 
questions that ask if more affordable housing or greenspace is needed.  She stated that her goal 



5 
 

is to get answers and information that can actually be related to the Comprehensive Plan.  She 
stated that, for example, she would like the questions to help find out if people think the City has 
enough commercial, rental, housing, retail, and restaurant uses.   
 
Commissioner West stated that using a “yes” or “no” question will really narrow down the 
information gathered. 
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that some of the information Commissioner Coughlin is referring to can 
be found out during the survey process but also during the open house and workshop meetings 
with the public.      
 
Mayor Iverson noted that the survey questions need to have a sort of balance in how the questions 
are asked.  She gave the example of asking about commercial development and people 
answering across the board that they do not want anymore commercial development but the 
Comprehensive Plan will say that the City is planning commercial development.  She stated that 
the point is to get feedback but not make people angry or mislead them about what will be included 
in the Comprehensive Plan.   
 
Commissioner Coughlin asked if multiple choice answers would be a better option for some of 
the questions.   
 
Commissioner West stated that multiple choice options may be a good idea because you may be 
able to get people who are busier to actually take the time to respond because they don’t have to 
do a lot of thinking and composing longer answers.   
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that there could also be an “other” option so they can write in 
additional information if they would like.   She asked if it would be helpful for the City to know if 
residents own or rent as well as have well or City water.   
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that the City needs to be cognizant of the length of the survey. 
 
Commissioner Coughlin reiterated that the survey needs to focus on information that will be useful 
for the City related to the Comprehensive Plan and not extra information.  She noted in the portion 
of the draft survey where it gives the option of number answers from 1 to 5 it needs to be clarified 
if 1 or 5 is excellent.   
 
Commissioner West stated that she is in favor of a rating scale because there will be less writing.  
She stated that she thinks of this from her own perspective when she is asked to fill out a survey.  
She stated that because she has small children at home, if she is asked to write a paragraph 
rather than just pick an answer, it will take significantly longer.   
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that it will be harder to review and compile the written responses.  
 
Commissioner Murdock stated that it is important to remember how long the Commission has 
been talking about this and that they are still finding it difficult to choose the correct wording to 
describe what they are trying to do.  He stated that perhaps there could be some lead in that says 
where the City has been and where it is going so people know why the City is asking the questions.   
He stated that he likes Commissioner Coughlin’s idea to make sure the survey questions are 
focused in on information helpful to the Comprehensive Plan.  He stated that perhaps there could 
be one question about transportation, one about City services, one about businesses they want 
to see, in order to keep it simple but fit within the elements of the Comprehensive Plan.  He 
reiterated that he thinks the lead in about where the City has been and where it is going is 
important so they understand the context of why the City is asking for their input. 
  
Commissioner Coughlin stated that she agreed because if people don’t know why the City is 



6 
 

asking for this information it is hard for them to respond in a useful way. 
 
Commissioner Murdock stated that he would suggest some facts and interesting information 
about Wyoming also be included.  He suggested that perhaps 3 different points in history be 
chosen and then different statistics from those years be shared, perhaps housing statistics.   
 
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that may be difficult because of the different City and Township 
entities.   
 
Commissioner Murdock stated that he thinks this information can be generalized a bit.  He stated 
that is thinking of something that says, since 1970 here is how the City has grown and then give 
general population numbers as well as business information.  He stated that he does not think a 
question that asks what people want to see done with the Comprehensive Plan belongs on the 
survey.  He stated that there is another question that asked what changes people would like the 
City to make regarding their property.  He stated that this question did not make sense to him and 
he doesn’t understand the basis for the question.   
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that she thinks that question came from the City of Hugo. 
 
Commissioner Murdock suggested that there be some additional wording that clarifies the 
meaning and purpose of the question.  He stated that he also believes the questions surrounding 
road classification are too in depth and suggested that be information discussed at the open house 
rather than on the survey.   
 
Chair Lobermeier suggested that the Commission focus on the questions that were submitted on 
the July 2019 page that was handed out to the Commission.   
 
Commissioner Murdock stated that he would like to spend a few minutes and actually sit down 
with City Administrator Linwood to discuss his ideas.   
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that if the Commission could have the survey back for the meeting on 
August 13, 2019, then it could be sent to the Council agenda for their August 20, 2019 meeting 
and be sent out to the public shortly after Stagecoach Days.  He stated that he is really happy 
with what City Administrator Linwood has pulled together so far.   
 
Commissioner Murdock gave an overview of what he had put together for the Table of Contents 
and noted that some of the information gathered form the survey results will be useful for filling in 
Chapter 1.  He stated that the Development Guide section, to him, is a summary section that 
explains how things are done in the City and the “meat and potatoes” section should be kept at 
the end.  He stated that he likes this layout because it doesn’t get too far into the weeds until the 
end of the document for the people that are really interested in it.  He noted that in the e-mail he 
sent today, he provided some examples from other cities that go very quickly into the meat and 
potatoes of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that the Met Council based Comprehensive Plans appear to be only for 
the Met Council.  He stated that in those communities their Comprehensive Plan is geared 
towards the Met Council being the audience and not the community.  
 
Commissioner Murdock asked if any of the Commissioners had comments on Chapter 2 
regarding the issues/challenges section. 
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that he feels this section may be populated with information gathered 
from both the surveys and the open house meetings.   
 
Commissioner Coughlin asked if some of the information in this section could be turned into 



7 
 

questions that are asked on the survey. 
 
Commissioner Murdock stated that he had also given the Commission a document called 
“Comprehensive Plan Template” but noted that he did not think the title is what is important.  He 
stated that he would like to see the Commission read this document because he thinks there are 
some great points within it and noted that after he read it, it made him feel more confident about 
what the City is doing.   
 
Commissioner Coughlin asked whether it would make sense to have a question about commuting 
which was done in the last survey that was done in Wyoming.   
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that some of this information can be gathered at the open house and 
doesn’t necessarily all need to be done in the survey.   
 
Commissioner Murdock stated that he is going to run a question by City Administrator Linwood:  
“If you had the choice to write the by-line for the City, what would it say?  The City of Wyoming, 
the (fill in the blank).”  He stated that he will revise the Table of Contents a bit further for the next 
meeting and asked the Commission to send him their feedback so he can incorporate it prior to 
the meeting. 
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that he thinks the link between the Comprehensive Plan and the zoning 
ordinances are important.  He stated that having a description of how they work together and how 
the Comprehensive Plan will influence the zoning ordinance would also be helpful.   
 
Commissioner Murdock reiterated that he would like everyone to take a closer look at the 
Comprehensive Plan Template document because he thinks the author does a really good job of 
talking about goals, policies and strategies. 
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that he is hopeful that the revised survey will be ready for the 
Commission to look at by the August 13, 2019 meeting.  He stated that the Commission can also 
plan to have a discussion about the Comprehensive Plan Template document at that meeting.   
He stated that for the August 27, 2019 meeting the Commission can plan to start looking at the 
text sections.   
 
COMMUNICATIONS:  NONE 
 
UPDATES:  NONE 
 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER COUGHLIN, SECONDED BY 
COMMISSIONER WEST, TO ADJOURN THE JULY 23, 2019 “REGULAR MEETING” OF 
THE WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION AT 8:06 PM. 
 
Voting Aye: Murdock, West, Coughlin, and Lobermeier 
Voting Nay: None  
Abstain:  None 
Absent:   Ericson 

 


	CITY OF WYOMING, MINNESOTA

